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      Staff Report 
              City of Manhattan Beach 

 
 

TO:   Honorable Mayor Powell and Members of the City Council 
 
THROUGH:  David N. Carmany, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Jim Arndt, Director of Public Works 
   Steve Finton, City Engineer 
 
DATE:  June 5, 2012 
 
SUBJECT: Professional Services Agreement with VA Consulting, Inc. ($62,971) for 

Design Services related to the Ardmore Avenue (Boundary Place to 
Manhattan Beach Boulevard), Valley Drive (2nd Street to Longfellow 
Avenue) and 11th Place (Ardmore Avenue to Highview Avenue) Street 
Resurfacing Project 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that City Council authorize the City Manager to award a Professional 
Services Agreement to VA Consulting, Inc. in an amount not to exceed $62,971 for professional 
engineering services to design the Ardmore Avenue (Boundary Place to Manhattan Beach 
Boulevard), Valley Drive (2nd Street to Longfellow Avenue) and 11th Place (Ardmore Avenue to 
Highview Avenue) Street Resurfacing Project. 
 
FISCAL IMPLICATIONS: 
Funding for the recommended contract would be provided from appropriations made by City 
Council through the Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) as follows: 
 

Table 1                                                Budget 
Current Appropriation from Fiscal Year 2011-12 CIP  
Street Resurfacing Project: Ardmore and Valley Project No. 
12831E 

$700,000 

FY2012-13 appropriation as indicated in the adopted Fiscal Year 
2012-13 through 2016-17 CIP. (available July 1, 2012) 

$200,000 

Total  $900,000 
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Estimated expenditures for project management, geotechnical, topographic survey and 
engineering costs are indicated in Table 2 below. 
 

Table 2                                                Estimated Costs 
Current Appropriation from Fiscal Year 2011-12 CIP  
Street Resurfacing Project: Ardmore and Valley Project No. 
12831E 

$900,000 

Project Management Costs - Sunbeam Consulting $17,718  
Geotechnical Agreement Kling Consulting  Group, Inc. $7,720 
Topographic Survey Agreement KDM Meridian $31,515  
Recommended Design Agreement with VA Consulting, Inc $62,971 
Total Estimated Design Expenses $119,924 

Balance Available for Construction $780,076 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
Ardmore Avenue, from Manhattan Beach Boulevard to Boundary Place, Valley Drive from 2nd 
Street to Longfellow Avenue and 11th Place from Ardmore Avenue to Highview Avenue are 
deteriorated and rehabilitation of the pavement is required (see map, Attachment 1). Ardmore 
Avenue suffers from pavement deterioration due to poor drainage characteristics.  Valley Drive 
pavement appears to suffer from load-related distresses and 11th Place suffers from age-related 
deterioration.  The fiscal year 2011-12 and 2012-13 CIPs include funding to rehabilitate the 
existing pavement surface and to improve drainage. 
 
On July 5th 2011, staff made a presentation to City Council regarding paving techniques and 
alternatives available to reduce environmental impacts of pavements and paving processes.  
Warm-Mix Asphalt Concrete is an alternative being used in increasing amounts statewide.  
Warm-Mix Asphalt Concrete is produced and placed at lower temperatures, which reduces 
heating energy required, material smoking during placement and worker heat exposure.  Staff 
recommended the use of Warm-Mix Asphalt Concrete on 11th Place as a test location such that 
performance can be monitored in a low-risk location.  
 
In January 2011, Staff issued a request for proposal for On-Call Engineering Services. Fifty-
three proposals were received. Staff reviewed the proposals and developed a shortlist of 
fourteen firms for consideration on City projects over the next three years. Five firms were 
identified for street and transportation design services: Bureau Veritas, Plotnik & Associates, 
Psomas, RBF Consulting and VA Consulting, Inc.  
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The project will include pavement mill and overlay throughout the project limits with some 
localized full-depth pavement removal and replacement.  Drainage improvements will be 
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provided to eliminate standing water in the Ardmore Avenue at 11th Place intersection and to 
control nuisance run-off that has damaged pavement at several locations on Ardmore Avenue. 
 
The City solicited proposals from the five shortlisted firms to provide design services for the 
Ardmore Avenue, Valley Drive and 11th Place resurfacing project.  Staff reviewed and ranked 
the proposals as follows:  
 
Rank Firm Proposed Fee Staff Determination 

1 VA Consulting, Inc. $62,971 

The proposal from VA Consulting, Inc. 
included all design elements, methods and 
expertise required for the project and was 
deemed the most effective proposal 
submitted for the project. 

2 Bureau Veritas $62,720  
3 Plotnik & Associates  $76,830  
4 RBF Consulting $108,618  
5 Psomas 

 
 Did not submit a proposal. 

 
VA Consulting was selected as the most appropriate firm in terms of comprehensive Scope of 
Work, prior experience, capability of staff, and proposed fee for this project.  Although, the fee 
proposed by VA Consulting Inc. is slightly higher than the number two ranked proposal, the 
hourly rates proposed by VA Consulting, Inc. are lower and more engineering hours of service 
are provided through their proposal.  The final Not to Exceed cost proposal is $62,971 which is 
appropriate for this type and magnitude of work. 
 
Under the recommended agreement, VA Consulting, Inc. will prepare plans, specifications and 
estimates to be used to solicit bids and award a construction contract to perform the work.  
Topographical survey base mapping and a geotechnical investigation was performed under 
separate contracts and will be provided to VA Consulting for use on the project.  
 
It is expected that plans and specifications will be complete and ready for bidding in October 
2012 with construction commencing in January 2013. 
 
Attachments:   

1) Map 
2) Recommended Agreement with VA Consulting, Inc. 

 
xc: Henry Mitzner, Controller 
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